



(JNU)

(IITTM)

New Delhi- 110067

Govindpuri, Gwalior, M.P.- 474011

(A Central University established by an Act of Parliament)

www.jnu.ac.in

(An Autonomous Body under Ministry of Tourism, Govt. of India)

www.iittm.ac.in

ADMISSION BULLETIN

Ph.D. Admission 2025

IITTM Campuses



CONTENTS

| About JNU | 3 |
|---|----|
| About IITTM | 4 |
| Ph.D. Programme | 5 |
| Syllabus for Ph.D. Entrance Examination | 7 |
| Intake Capacity | 12 |
| Reservations | 12 |
| Application Fees | 12 |
| Admission Eligibility | 13 |
| Mode of Application | 14 |
| Selection Procedure | 14 |
| Admission Calendar | 15 |
| Ph.D. Fees Structure | 16 |
| Refund Policy | 17 |
| Facilities at IITTM | 18 |
| Reservation of Rights | 19 |
| Instructions Against Ragging | 19 |
| Contact Details | 21 |

ABOUT JNU

Jawaharlal Nehru University is the foremost university in India and a world-renowned center for teaching and research. Ranked number one in India by the National Assessment and Accreditation Council (NAAC) with a Grade Point of 3.91 (on a scale of 4), JNU was ranked no 2 among all universities in India by the National Institutional Ranking Framework, Government of India, in 2021, 2022 and 2023. JNU also received the Best University Award from the President of India in 2017.

Still, a young university, established by an act of Parliament in 1966, the strength, energy, and reputation of Jawaharlal Nehru University result from the vision that ideas are a field for adventure, experimentation, and unceasing quest and that diversity of opinions are the basis for intellectual exploration. JNU is the place for the intellectually restless, the insatiably curious, and the mentally rigorous, giving them the space to grow amidst the calmness of an oasis, a green lung within the hustle and bustle, and the crowds of the capital city of India.

In 1969, three years after its establishment by Parliament, JNU brought frontier disciplines and newer perspectives for old disciplines to the Indian university system. The excellent teacher-student ratio of 1:10, the mode of instruction that encourages students to explore their creativity instead of reproducing received knowledge, and exclusively internal evaluation, were also new to the Indian academic landscape and have stood the test of time.

The objectives embedded in the founding of the University – 'national integration, social justice, secularism, the democratic way of life, international understanding and a scientific approach to the problems of society', had built into them constant and energetic endeavour to renew knowledge through self-questioning.

OBJECTIVES:

- To foster the composite culture of India and establish such departments or institutions as may be required for the study and development of the languages, arts, and culture of India.
- To take special measures to facilitate students and teachers from all over India to join the University and participate in its academic programmes.
- To promote in the students and teachers an awareness and understanding of the social needs of the country and prepare them for fulfilling such needs.
- To make special provision for integrated courses in humanities, science, and technology in the educational programmes of the University.
- To take appropriate measures for promoting interdisciplinary studies in the University.
- To establish such departments or institutions as may be necessary for the study of languages, literature, and life of foreign countries to inculcate in the students a world perspective and international understanding.
- To provide facilities for students and teachers from other countries to participate in the academic programmes and life of the University.

The educational philosophy of the university gets translated into its somewhat unorthodox academic structure. Grounded in faith in the unity of knowledge, JNU has sought to avoid the narrowly conceived Department structure of conventional universities, preferring instead to bring allied disciplines within a few broad entities called Schools, under whose interactive ambit are placed the more specialized units, called Centres.

There are also Special Centres that are outside even the broad structures of the school but may grow further. At present, there are ten Schools and four Special Centres in the University.

ABOUT IITTM

Indian Institute of Tourism and Travel Management (IITTM) is an autonomous body under the Ministry of Tourism, Government of India, and is one of the premier Institutes in the country offering education, training, research, and consultancy in the field of tourism, travel and allied sectors. IITTM was established in 1983 and presently IITTM campuses are located at Gwalior, Bhubaneswar, Goa, Noida, and Nellore.

IITTM is a founder member of the UN-ESCAP-promoted Network of Asia-Pacific Educational and Training Institutes in Tourism (APETIT). IITTM is committed to developing quality human resources for tourism and allied services. The target groups of its educational/ training programmes extend much beyond the organized sectors of the economy.

IITTM endeavours to nurture professional and managerial excellence, social and cultural sensitivity, moral and ethical responsibility with a concern for the environment and strive for the latest techniques to develop decision-making abilities with a resolute approach towards productivity, excellence, innovation and value for others to enable its participants to keep pace with the changing scenario of the economy and its environs.

The faculty, staff, students, and administration of the Institute contribute to the building of an organizational culture marked by team spirit, confidence, mutual respect, and concern for others. The students of the regular courses and the participants of various training programmes enrich the culture of the Institute with their diverse backgrounds and experience. IITTM welcomes people working at different levels to attend MDPs and various tailor-made training programmes in IITTM centers at Gwalior, Bhubaneswar, NOIDA, Goa, and Nellore, and camps in Bodh Gaya and Shillong.

Our programmes incorporate both subject-specific and generic business modules and have been designed to reflect industry practices and academic developments. Each of our existing courses touches upon tourism as a business activity - the organization, dimensions, social significance, and impact of tourism are studied.

With entry profiles ranging from beginners to advanced levels, our programs are tailor-made to meet the present needs of the tourism industry. Learners are supported at every stage of learning and career development.

July 06 marked a watershed event as IITTM signed a landmark MoU with the prestigious university JNU. The MoU is towards recognizing of IITTM's flagship UG, PG Degree, and Ph.D. Programs in Travel & Tourism by JNU from the academic year 2023-24.

COURSES OFFERED:

- 1. Three years full-time Bachelor of Business Administration in Tourism & Travel
- 2. Two-year full-time Master of Business Administration in Tourism & Travel Management
- 3. Ph.D. Travel & Tourism Programme

Ph.D. PROGRAMME

Aspiring students are invited to join the Jawaharlal Nehru University (JNU)- Indian Institute of Tourism and Travel Management (IITTM) Ph.D. programme and on a transformative journey in the tourism and related sectors. With the accompaniment of our Ph.D. programme, committed scholars can investigate the many dimensions of tourism, support the growth of this vital sector, and use cutting-edge research to influence travel and tourism in the future.

Research Excellence: At IITTM, we are dedicated to fostering an atmosphere that is favourable for research and development in all fields associated with tourism and related industry. Our intensive research projects foster a creative and critical thinking environment in the classroom, enabling our researchers to achieve success in their disciplines.

MOU with **JNU:** By integrating the skills and resources of two highly esteemed institutions, the relationship with Jawaharlal Nehru University offers a rare opportunity for interdisciplinary research and access to a sizable academic network.

Multidisciplinary Approach: A multidisciplinary approach is emphasized in our Ph.D. programme, which enables applicants to integrate knowledge from different subjects to tackle challenging issues in tourism and related sectors.

Duration of the Programme:

Ph.D. programme shall be for a minimum duration of three (3) years, including course work, and a maximum duration of six (6) years from the date of admission to the Ph.D. programme. However, a student admitted in a Ph.D. may de-register subject to the following conditions:

- a. The student has been confirmed in the Ph.D Programme
- b. The student has completed a minimum residency period of three (3) years from the date of admission.
- ii. A maximum of an additional two (2) years can be availed through a process of re-registration. However, the total period for completion of a Ph.D. programme should not exceed eight (8) years from the date of admission to the Ph.D. programme.

Provided further that, female Ph.D. scholars and Persons with Disabilities (having more than 40% disability) may be allowed an additional relaxation of two (2) years: however, the total period for completion of a Ph.D. programme in such cases should not exceed ten (10) years from the date of admission in the Ph.D. programme.

Any such extension will be granted by CASR/Equivalent Body of the concerned School/Spl Centre/Centre on the recommendation of RAC of the Ph.D. student.

iii. Female Ph.D. Scholars may be provided Maternity Leave/Child Care Leave for up to 240 days in the entire duration of the Ph.D. programme.

Coursework:

The coursework is to be completed by all candidates admitted to the Programme. It shall be treated as a prerequisite for Ph.D. preparation. The duration of the coursework shall be one year divided into two semesters.

All Research Scholars admitted to the Ph.D. programme shall be required to complete the coursework in the initial two semesters only. In no case shall a Research Scholar be allowed to repeat any course either in the event of failure or to improve the grades.

Candidates who have completed the **M.Phil. programme** with at least 55% marks in aggregate or its equivalent grade in a point scale wherever grading system is followed or equivalent qualification from a foreign educational institution accredited by an assessment and accreditation agency which is approved, recognized or authorized by an authority, established or incorporated under a law in its home country or any other statutory authority in that country to assess, accredit or are quality and standards of educational institutions, shall be eligible for admission to the Ph.D. programme. A relaxation of 5% marks or its equivalent grade may be allowed for those belonging to SC/ST/OBC (non-creamy layer) Differently Abled. Economically Weaker Section (EWS) and other categories of candidates as per the decision of the Commission from time to time.

Note: Any issue relating to the equivalence of a foreign degree with an Indian degree shall be referred to the Equivalence Committee constituted by the University.

SYLLABUS FOR PH.D. ENTRANCE EXAMINATION

The entrance exam will be of 100 marks. The question paper will have the following two parts:

- A. Research Methodology (50% weightage, i.e., 50 marks weightage)
- B. Tourism Administration and Management (50% weightage, i.e., 50 marks weightage)

Paper Pattern: Question Paper comprises of Multiple-Choice Questions (MCQs).

PART A: RESEARCH METHODOLOGY

Unit-I Theory of Research & Problem Identification & Formulation: Meaning and Definition of Research, Types of Research, Research Approaches, Criteria of Good Research, Research Applications – Research Question – Investigation Question – Measurement Issues–Hypothesis– Qualities of a good Hypothesis–Null Hypothesis & Alternative Hypothesis; Hypothesis Testing–Logic & Importance.

Unit-II Research Design & Research Methods: Concept and Importance in Research – Features of a good research design–Exploratory Research Design – concept, types and uses, Descriptive Research Designs – concept, types and uses. Experimental Design: Concept of Independent & Dependent variables.

Qualitative research – Quantitative research – Concept of measurement, causality, generalization, and replication. quantitative vs. qualitative research; techniques- Grounded Theory, Ethnography, Case method of research, Content Analysis, Phenomenology, Narrative research, mixed methods.

Unit-III Measurement & Sampling: Concept of measurement— what is measured? Problems in measurement in research –Validity and Reliability. Levels of measurement— Nominal, Ordinal, Interval, Ratio. Concepts of Statistical Population, Sample, Sampling Frame, Sampling Error, Sample Size, Non-Response. Characteristics of a good sample. Probability and Non-Probability samples. Determining the size of the sample—Practical Considerations in sampling and sample size. Sampling Tests.

Unit-IV Data Analysis: Percentages and Ratios, Measures of Central Tendency, Frequency Distribution, Measures of Variability, Correlation and Regression, Measurement of Trend, Data Preparation – Univariate analysis (frequency tables, bar charts, pie charts, percentages), Bivariate analysis – Cross tabulations and Chi-square test including testing hypothesis- parametric vs. non-parametric tests, t-tests, ANOVA, Chi-square tests, run Test, sign tests, Wald- Wolfowitz Test, Kursal Walis Test, Komogrov- Smirnov Test.

Unit-V Interpretation of Data and Paper Writing & Use of tools/techniques for Research: Types of the report-Planning Report Writing-Format & Writing of Research Report-Footnotes, endnotes and bibliography-Styles of Referencing, Application of ICT Tools in Research; Methods to search required information effectively, Reference Management Software, Software for detection of Plagiarism

PART B: TOURISM ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT

Unit - I Conceptual Study on Tourism, Tourism Products & Global Geography:

Forms of Tourism – Inbound, Outbound, National, International. Different Tourism Systems- Leiper's Geospatial Model, Mill-Morrison, Mathieson & Wall, Butler's Tourism Area Life Cycle (TALC) - Doxey's Irridex Index – Demonstration Effect –Crompton's Push and Pull Theory, Stanley Plog's Model, Horizontal and Vertical Integration in Tourism Business, Travel motivators.

Earth's movement; Latitude, Longitude; Areas, Sub Areas, and Sub Regions as per International Air Transport Organization (IATA). World Geography - Climate & Vegetation, Elements of weather and climate, Impact of weather and climate on tourist destinations, Climate and Vegetation of India, Physical Geography of India.

Nature and Characteristics of Tourism Products of India - Seasonality and Diversities, Tourist attraction – Concept & Classification, World Heritage Sites and Biodiversity of India.

Unit – II Transport Systems:

Major transport systems – Rail, Road, Air and Water transport and Multi-Modal Transport. Major Road Network in World, Major Railway Network in the World, Evolution of Transportation in India. Scheduled and non-scheduled airlines services; LCC & FSC airlines; Contemporary Civil Aviation policy in India; International Civil Aviation Administration and the role of IATA & ICAO; Major Global Distribution System for Travel & Tourism service.

Major Global Railway Network. Indian Railways, Special schemes and packages available, palace on wheels, royal Orient, fairy queen, and toy trains. Future of Railways in India. Water Transport System - Historical Past, Prospects of Cruise Tourism in India. Future of Water Transport in India. Cruise Tourism-Major cruise lines of the World.

Unit – III Travel & Hospitality Trade Operations:

Historical Background of Travel Trade, Significance of Travel Agency Business, Types of Travel Agent-Full-Service Agency, Commercial Agency, Implant Agency, Group / Incentive Agency, Skills and Competencies for Running Travel Agency Business, Wholesale and Retail Agents, Types of Tour Operator- Inbound, Outbound, Domestic, Ground and Specialized. Types of Tour- Independent Tour, Escorted Tour, Hosted Tour, Incentivized Tour, Tour Wholesalers and Retailers, Role of Tour Operators. Types of Itineraries - Resources and Steps for Itinerary Planning, Tour Costing: Tariffs, FIT & GIT, Confirmation of Tour. Passport & VISA, Health Certificates, Currency, Travel Insurance, Credit & Debit Card, Customs & Baggage Rules- Weight & Piece Concept of Baggage allowance in airlines.

Distinctive characteristics of the Hospitality Industry; hotels and the other lodging facilities; classification of hotels. Types of accommodation. Familiarisation with Front Office Functions, Reservation & registration-Types of Room, Meal plans, room assignments, check-in, methods of payment, and type of hotel guests. Important functions of Housekeeping Management, liaison with other departments, room supplies; Housekeeping Department-Hierarchy, duties & responsibilities of housekeeping staff. Orientation on Food Production, buffet, beverage operation, Functions, Types of restaurant menus, Room Service, Catering Services-Food Services for Airlines, Banquette, Corporate, MICE, and Retail Food Market. Online food delivery network and quality control-Trends in lodging and food services- Cloud Kitchen.

Unit - IV Tourism Planning & Marketing:

Destination Image Development - Attributes of Destinations, Destination resource analysis, measurement of destination image - Destination branding perspectives and challenges- Place branding and destination image - Destination image formation process; unstructured image - Tourism planning - Roles of international, national, state and local tourism organizations in carrying out tourism policies. Sustainable tourism development, Propoor Tourism and Community Participation; Responsible tourism.

8P's of Tourism Marketing-Designing Tourism Products – Branding and Packaging, Product Development – Product Life Cycle & Its Various Stages, Pricing Strategies and Approaches, Advertising – Sales Promotion – Publicity – Personal Selling, Tourism Distribution Channels. Digital Marketing, Corporate Social Responsibility.

Unit V Management, Organisational Behaviour & Accounting and Legal Procedures:

Managerial processes, functions, skills, and roles in organization, External and internal environment affecting managerial decisions; functions of planning, organizing, staffing, directing and controlling; Crisis Management and Conflict Management. Theories of Motivation, Leadership & influence process, Organization structure, strategy & structure, flat & tall structures, work specialization, departmentalization, chain of command, span of control, and formalization. Basic Accounting Records and Books of Accounts, Depreciation Accounting, and Final Accounts with Adjustments. Financial management, Concept of raising funds, capital structure, capital budgeting, Internal financial control; Types of budgets, preparation of budget, and zero-based budgeting, working capital management, cash management; Elements of Contract Act — Breach of Contact — Performance of Contract — Indemnity & Guarantee — Bailment - Consumer Protection Act.

INTAKE CAPACITY

There are 32 seats available in the Ph.D. Programme at various centers of IITTM located at Gwalior, Bhubaneswar, Noida, Nellore & Goa.

RESERVATIONS

Reservation (for Indian Nationals) will be applicable as per central government guidelines i.e. 7.5% for ST, 15% for SC, 27% for OBC (under the non-creamy layer), and 10% for EWS candidates. In all the available seats, 3% horizontal reservation shall also be applicable for physically disabled candidates, for admission to MBA (Tourism & Travel Management) 2023-25. Physically disabled candidates are strongly encouraged to apply. Note: The candidate, who belongs to the SC / ST / OBC / PWD category, must produce the valid category certificate issued by the competent authority. The OBC candidate has to produce a non-creamy layer certificate as per central Govt. regulations and issued by the competent authority within the last three years

APPLICATION FEES

For GEN / OBC: Rs. 2000

For SC / ST / PWD/ EWS: Rs. 1000

The application fee is required to be paid online through a payment gateway, using debit/credit cards or internet banking or UPI.

ADMISSION ELIGIBILITY

 Candidates who have passed a Master's Degree in Tourism/ Hotel Management/ Commerce & Management/ Social Sciences or any other allied field from any accredited Indian or Foreign University with at least 55% marks in aggregate or its equivalent grade in a point scale wherever the grading system is followed.

OR

- An equivalent qualification from a foreign educational institution accredited by an assessment and accreditation agency which is approved, recognized, or authorized by an authority, established or incorporated under a law in its home country or any other statutory authority in that country to assess, accredit or assure quality and standards of the educational institution.
- A relaxation of 5% marks or its equivalent grade may be allowed for those belonging to SC/ST/OBC (non-creamy layer)/Differently-Abled. Economically Weaker Section (EWS) and other categories of candidates as per the decision of the Commission from time to time.
- Provided that for the selection of candidates based on the entrance test conducted by the IITTM, a
 weightage of 70 % for the entrance test and 30% for the performance in the interview/viva- voce shall be
 given. The Institute may decide the number of eligible students to be called for an interview based on the
 number of Ph.D. seats available. However, the ratio of shortlisted candidates ideally shall not be less
 than 1:3 candidates for every seat.
- All candidates are compulsorily required to appear in the Entrance Test, exemption to Junior Research
 Fellowship (JRF) holders of UGC- NET to appear in the Entrance Test. These candidates shall have
 first preference in the admission process. These candidates shall be required to directly appear in the
 interview like any other candidates.
- Candidates who have qualified NET/SLET/GATE examination conducted by Central Government/ State
 Government agencies shall be awarded additional marks; however, to qualify for the interview these
 candidates shall be required to score at least 50% marks in the Entrance Test, without adding of the
 additional marks.
- Students who have secured 50 % marks in the entrance test are eligible to be called for the interview. A
 relaxation of 5% marks will be allowed in the entrance examination for the candidates belonging to
 SC/ST/OBC/differently abled category. Economically Weaker Section (EWS). and other categories of
 candidates as per the decision of the Commission from time to time.

MODE OF APPLICATION

The candidate will have to apply Online at the website for enrolling for Ph.D. Admissions.

The form has to be duly filled and submitted along with the prescribed application fees. Payment should be done online at the portal.

The entrance exam will be conducted (Offline) at the allocated IITTM Centers (to be updated at Admit Cards).

SELECTION PROCEDURE

A candidate to be considered for admission to Ph.D. Session 2025-26 would have to participate in both components of the screening process, as mentioned below. If any case the candidate does not appear in one of the components of the screening process will not be included in the merit list.

The admission to Ph.D. Session 2025-26 would be strictly based on the overall performance of the entrance written test + PI, as explained as follows:

i. Assessment of New Applicants

Written Test: IITTM Ph.D. Admission Test (IIAT) 2023 70%)

Personal Interview 30% (Weightage)

100%

ii. Assessment of NET-JRF Candidates

Personal Interview 100% (Weightage)

Inter-se-merit will be determined based on the above out of a maximum of 100 marks, by moderating the score of the written test into 70% of marks of total marks obtained by the candidate, as practiced by the institute.

- a. In case two or more candidates have scored equal marks, the inter-se-merit of such candidates shall be determined based on higher score and thereafter older.
- b. In case the candidate fails to establish their eligibility, the admission will be cancelled and fees will be forfeited.

ADMISSION CALENDAR

| DETAILS | DATES |
|---|-----------------------------|
| Ph.D. Admission Form Filling (Online registration and submission of Application Form for Ph.D.) | 8th March 2025 |
| Last Date for Form Submission | 20th March 2025 |
| Downloading of Admit Card | 10th April 2025 |
| Date of Entrance Examination | 13th April 2025 |
| Date for Personal Interview | 20th April 2025 |
| Date for Result Declaration | 30 th April 2025 |
| Ph.D. Courses Classes Commencement | 7 th July 2025 |

NOTE: The above-mentioned dates are tentative and may be subject to extension at the discretion of the Ph.D. Committee of IITTM.

PH.D. FEES STRUCTURE

The total course fee for a candidate shall be in three years (six semesters including course work excluding examination fee) as per the following details:

Semester I: (a) Tuition fee Rs. 45,000/-

(b) Caution Money (Refundable) Rs. 5,000/-

Semester II-VI: Rs. 25,000/- per semester for five semesters Rs. 1,25,000/-

Total: Rs. 1,75,000/-

Note:

1. Examination fee: Rs. 50,000/- at the time of submission of the thesis for evaluation and examination.

- 2. In case of an extension of the duration beyond three years, the fee shall be Rs. 25,000/- per semester of the extended period.
- 3. A total of 10% of the semester fee except caution money shall be admissible to IITTM for all the semesters. The examination fee of Rs. 10,000/- shall be admissible to JNU at the time of submission of the thesis.

REFUND POLICY

The refund policy is applicable as per the institute's guidelines-

- Process of refund of tuition, development, and other fees after cancellation of admission secured through CAP rounds, institute level round(s), and vacancy round(s) of admission.
- The candidate, who has been provisionally admitted, may cancel admission by submitting an application for cancellation in duplicate and may request for refund offer within the prescribed date.
- In case of the online portal fails to detect the non-eligible applicant, then the responsibility lies with the applicant. So, the applicant needs to ensure to check his/her eligibility before applying for the Ph.D. Admissions 2025.
- The refund of the fee as applicable shall be made in due course. It is made clear that such application for cancellation will be considered if and only if the admission is confirmed by paying the prescribed tuition fee and other fees in full and by submitting the original documents.
- Refund shall be made after deduction of the cancellation charges as shown:

| Situation | Refund |
|--|---|
| On request received on or before the date of commencement of the academic session. | The entire fee is less by Rs. 10000/- + Rs.1000/- as processing fee of + as admission cancellation charges. |
| On request received after the date of commencement of the academic season and during the first semester of the Ph.D. | No refund will be entertained. |

Note

The commencement date of academic season **2025-26** is **7**th **July 2025** and it will count for all purposes of refund of fee cases.

FACILITIES AT IITTM

IITTM centers have state-of-the-art infrastructure that supports a learning environment. Some of the variant features are as follows:

- All the classrooms have the facilities of air-conditioner and are well-equipped with state-of-the-art technology like projectors etc.
- All the campuses have the facility of Wi-Fi around the clock (service provider dependent).
- Gwalior campus is having hostel facility, auditorium, gym facility, conference room, computer lab, one of the best libraries of tourism in the country, canteen, gym facility, hostel mess, medical facilities, playground, and sports facilities like the best billiards table within Gwalior city, PNB ATM facility, etc.
- Bhubaneswar campus is situated in a scenic setting just beside the National Highway. The state-of-theart campus possesses all facilities like the hostel, gym, conference room, computer lab, library, canteen, hostel mess, medical facilities on call, indoor and outdoor sports facilities, etc.
- The Noida campus is surrounded by a pleasing atmosphere, and it has having hostel facility, gym facility, conference room, computer labs, library, canteen, hostel mess, medical facilities, sports facilities, etc.
- Nellore campus is situated in the lap of nature near to coastal areas and it is having hostel facility, conference room, computer lab, library, canteen, medical facilities, sports facilities etc.

Moreover, Gwalior, Bhubaneswar, Nellore, and Noida campuses offer limited hostel facilities to students at a very affordable price (though a hostel room is not guaranteed). Hostel rental varies from Rs. 5,500/-* to Rs. 7,500/-*, for a semester, depending upon the type of accommodation. This excludes the caution money deposit and electricity charges. The hostel mess costs in the range of Rs.3,500/-* to Rs. 4,000/-* per month.

*(subject to revision)

RESERVATION OF RIGHTS

The Admission Bulletin 2025-26 is applicable for admission to Ph.D. (Tourism & Travel) programs. However, JNU and IITTM reserve all the right to make changes in requirements and regulations for admission, regulation for continuing the courses, contents of the courses, fee charges or regulations affecting students or making any other suitable modifications in any matter incidental or ancillary thereto, should these be deemed necessary in the interest of the student, profession or the institute. All matters of dispute, regarding the above, if any, will be subject to the legal jurisdiction of Madhya Pradesh High Court - Gwalior only.

INSTRUCTIONS AGAINST RAGGING

With forty years of its existence, the Indian Institute of Tourism and Travel Management (IITTM) has earned recognition as one of the renowned centers of teaching and research in the country. We appreciate the parents and the students for their interest and options towards pursuing their higher studies at IITTM. We wish them success in their plans to get admission to the programme of their choice on campus. Those who succeed in joining a course should be making the best use of the excellent facilities and congenial atmosphere available in the Institute towards the all-round development of their personality. We would expect our students to make the best use of this opportunity and grow as able and responsible citizens. Students will be required to work hard with their energies focused on achieving their goals. We take pride in informing all those desirous of seeking admission, that over all these years, our IITTM has the best traditions of maintaining a healthy and congenial academic environment. We are also glad to convey that with the determined and sincere efforts of our senior students and faculty, our campus has been free from the menace of ragging. Course Chairpersons / Nodal Officers of all the IITTM Centers to ensure that every student and their parents are asked to submit an undertaking every academic year to the effect that the concerned students will not take part in any activity leading to the ragging of junior students.

What Constitutes Ragging?

Ragging constitutes one or more of any of the following acts:

- 1. Any conduct by any student or students whether by words spoken or written or by an act which has the effect of teasing, treating, or handling with rudeness a fresher or any other student.
- 2. Indulging in rowdy or undisciplined activities by any student or students which causes or is likely to cause annoyance, hardship, physical or psychological harm or to raise fear or apprehension thereof in any fresher or any other student.
- 3. Asking any student to do any act which such student will not in the ordinary course do and which has the effect of causing or generating a sense of shame, or torment, or embarrassment to adversely affect the physique or psyche of such fresher or any other student.
- 4. Any act by a senior student that prevents, disrupts, or disturbs the regular academic activity of any other student or a fresher.
- 5. Exploiting the services of a fresher or any other student for completing the academic tasks assigned to an individual or a group of students.
- 6. Any act of financial extortion or forceful expenditure burden put on a fresher or any other student by students

- 7. Any act of physical abuse including all variants of it: sexual abuse, homosexual assaults, stripping, forcing obscene and lewd acts, gestures, causing bodily harm, or any other danger to health or person.
- 8. Any act or abuse by spoken words, e-mails, posts, or public insults which would also include deriving perverted pleasure, vicarious or sadistic thrill from actively or passively participating in the discomfiture to fresher or any other student.
- 9. Any act that affects the mental health and self-confidence of a fresher or any other student with or without an intent to derive a sadistic pleasure or showing off power, authority, or superiority by a student over any fresher or any other student.
- 10. Any act of physical or mental abuse (including bullying and exclusion) targeted at another student (fresher or otherwise) on the grounds of colour, race, religion, caste, ethnicity, gender (including transgender), sexual orientation, appearance, nationality, regional origins, linguistic identity, place of birth, place of residence or economic background.
- 11. All the senior students are advised to guide and treat junior Students affectionately.
- 12. Junior students may contact their chairpersons or other Institute functionaries like the Nodal Officer, Assistant Professor, Programme Officer, Administrative Officer, Chairman Students' Welfare, Wardens, or Security Officer for help and guidance.

Note: Use of Alcohol is prohibited on the Institute campus.

CONTACT DETAILS

Gwalior (Headquarters)

Indian Institute of Tourism and Travel Management, Govindpuri, Gwalior (MP) - 474011

Phone: 0751 - 2345821

Nodal officer: Prof. Saurabh Dixit

Ph.D. Coordinator: Dr. Ramesh Debrath

Mobile no.: 9827082135; 9425407607; 9425111266; 7898927820; 9039051004

Email: vkrai@iittm.ac.in, admissions@iittm.ac.in

Website: www.iittm.ac.in

Bhubaneswar (Centre)

Indian Institute of Tourism and Travel Management, Dumuduma, Bhubaneswar (Odisha) - 751019

Phone: 0674 - 2472014 / 2472016; Fax: 0674-2472013 Nodal officer & Ph.D. Chairperson: Prof. Md. Sabir Hussain

Ph.D. Coordinator: Prof. Advasha Das

Mobile no.: 9776771117, 9437010180; 8342082073 Email: iittmjnuphd@gmail.com

Website: www.iittmb.in

Noida (Centre)

Indian Institute of Tourism and Travel Management, Plot no. A 36, Sector- 62, NOIDA, Gautam Buddha

Nagar, UP - 201301 Phone: 0120 - 2459100

Nodal officer: Prof. Monika Prakash Ph.D. Coordinator: Dr. Nanita Tyagi

Mobile no.: 7503465065; 9911391880; 8860081676

Email: info@iittmnoida.ac.in Website: www.iittmnoida.ac.in

Nellore (Centre)

Indian Institute of Tourism and Travel Management, South campus Golagamudi (Village & Post), via -

Sarvepalli, SPSR, Nellore, Andhra Pradesh-524321 Phone: 0861 - 2353199; Fax: 0861 2353299

Nodal officer: Sanjeev Reddy Ph.D. Coordinator: Dr. Saravanan

Mobile no.:9866274850: 9966462786: 9490787854: 8999199338

Email: nellore@iittm.ac.in Website: www.iittmsouth.org

Goa (Centre)

National Institute of Water Sports (NIWS)- A Center of IITTM Aivavo, Near Dona Paula Circle Caranzalem,

Panjim, Goa, 403002

Tel:91-832-2454800/2456050 Nodal officer: Dr. Pawan Gupta

Ph.D. Coordinator: Dr. Charusheela Yadav Mobile No: 9447791508; 7377686582

E-mail: niwsgoa@gmail.com Website: http://www.niws.nic.in/